
OFICINA DEL COMISIONADO DE ASUNTOS MUNICIPALES
ARrl oe ASESoRAMIENTo, REGLAMETUcTóI E TNTERvENcTóru nscrr-

AREA DE ARCHIVO DIGITAL

MUNICIP¡O DE COMERIO
AUDITORIA 2014-2015

30 DE JUNIO DE 2OI5



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF COMERíO

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTING PACKAGE

FoR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERíO

StNGtE AUDrI REPoRTNG PaCKAGE

FoR THE YTAR ENDEDJUNE 30 2015

TABTE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAT SECTION

lndependent Aud¡tor's Report
Management's Discussion and Analys¡s

Basic Financial Statements:
Governmental-wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental Funds:

Balance Sheet
Reconc¡l¡at¡on of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to

statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expend¡tures and Changes ¡n Fund Balance

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activ¡ties
Property Funds:

Statement of Financial Pos¡tion
Statement of Act¡v¡ties
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the F¡nanc¡al Statements

REqUIRED SUPPTEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Budgetary Comparison
Notes to Schedule of Budgetary Comparison

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Notes to Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards

REPORTS REQUIRED UNDER OMB CIRCUTAR A.133

lndependent Auditors' report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Aud¡t of F¡nancial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

lndependent Aud¡tors' report on Compliance for Each Major Program and

on lnternal Control over Compliance required by Circular-A-133

SCHEDUTE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONES COSTS:

Section l. - Summary of Auditor's Results

Section ll. - Financ¡al Statements Findings

Section lll. - Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

Page

\-4
5-12

13

14-15

15

17

18

19

20
2t
22-23
24-44

45
46-48

49-50
51

52-54

55-58

59

50
61
62



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERíO

FtNANctAL STATEMENTS

FoR THE YEAR Ef,¡DEDJUNE 30, 2015



CARLOS R. DIAZ, CPA, PSC
PO AOX 4Oa, 7 5ALA5 rORRtS Sf, AGUA5 BUINA5, PU€RTO RlaO m70l TtL:78? 732_3020 ll,J:7A7132c6a\

INDEPENDENT AUDITOñTS REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Munic¡pal Legislative Body

Mun¡cipal¡ty of ComerÍo
Comerío, Puerto R¡co

Report on the F¡nanc¡al Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental act¡vities, the discretely
presented component un¡t, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining funds information of
Mun¡cipality of Comerío, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the
financ¡al statements, which collectively compr¡se the Mun¡cipal¡ty of Comerío, Puerto Rico bas¡c

financial statements as listed ¡n the table of contents. We did not aud¡t the financial statement of the
R¡o Plata Proiect, which represents 100% of total assets, net position and revenue of the bus¡ness type

act¡vities.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentat¡on of these financ¡al statements ¡n

accordance with account¡ng principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes

the design, implementation, and ma¡ntenance of internal control relevant to the preparat¡on and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from mater¡al misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Aud¡to/s Responsibil¡ty

Our responsibility ¡s to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We d¡d not

audit the financial statements of the bus¡ness type act¡vities. Those statements were audited by other
auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opin¡on, ¡nsofar as ¡t relates to the amounts

included for Río Plata Project, is based solely on the report of the other aud¡tors. We conducted our

audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to f¡nancial aud¡ts conta¡ned in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
m¡sstatement.

MEMAER:
Ameaican lnstitute of Certified Publ¡c Accountants
Puerto R¡co Society ot Ceñified Public Accountants

CPA !;;;1i3;;;.",..



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT (CONTINUED}:

An audit involves performing procedures to obta¡n audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the f¡nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment of the r¡sks of mater¡al misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the ent¡ty's

preparation and fair presentat¡on of the financ¡al statements ¡n order to design aud¡t procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effect¡veness of the entity's ¡nternal control. Accord¡nBly, we express no such opin¡on. An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of account¡ng pollcies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluat¡ng the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit ev¡dence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our aud¡t op¡n¡ons.

Summary of opinions:

Governmental activ¡t¡es
Bus¡ness type activit¡es
Discretely presented component un¡t

Each mayor funds
Aggregate rema¡n¡ng funds
Bus¡ness-type act¡vit¡es

TYoe of opinion:

Quallfied
Unqualified
Unqualified
Unqualified
U nqualified
Unqualified

Bas¡s for qualified opinion on Governmental Activit¡es

Management has not recorded the proportional share in the net pens¡on plan liability of the employee

ret¡rement system (ERS) and related disclosures. AccountinB principles generally accepted in the United

States of America requ¡re that the l¡ability representing the Municipal¡ty proportion share ¡n the ERS

should be presented ¡n the governmental-wide financial statements. ln add¡tion, other information of
the ERS should be disclosed. The amount by which this departure would affect the liabilities, fund

balance and expenses of the governmental-wide financial statements has not been determined.

Qualified opinion

ln our op¡n¡on, except for the effects of the matter described in the "Bas¡s for Qualified Opinion on

Governmental Activit¡es" paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all

mater¡al respects, the financial posit¡on of the governmental activities of the Mun¡c¡pality of Comerío,

Puerto R¡co, as of June 30,20L5, and the changes in financial posit¡on thereof for the year then ended in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted ¡n the Un¡ted States of Amer¡ca.

Unmodified opinions

ln our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other aud¡tor, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all mater¡al respects, the respective f¡nanc¡al position of the bus¡ness-type

act¡vities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the agBregate remaining fund

¡nformation of the Mun¡cipality of Comerío, Puerto Rico as of June 30, 7015, and the respective

changes in f¡nancial pos¡t¡on, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance w¡th accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT (CONTINUED):

Clther Matters

Required Su pple me ntory I nformotion

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requ¡re that the management's

d¡scuss¡on and analysis and budgetary compar¡son information on pages 5 to 12 and 45 to 48 be

presented to supplement the basic financ¡al statements. Such information, although not a part of the

basic financial statements, is requ¡red by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers

¡t to be an essent¡al part of f¡nancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements ¡n an

appropriate operat¡onal, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the requ¡red supplementary information in accordance w¡th auditing standards generally accepted in

the Un¡ted States of Amer¡ca, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the ¡nformat¡on and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses

to our inqu¡r¡es, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the

information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an

opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has om¡tted information related to the Municipality proportionate share of net pension

plan liability of the employer retirement systems informat¡on that account¡n8 principles generally

accepted in the united states of Amer¡ca require to be presented to supplement the basic financial

statements. Such miss¡ng information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required

by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of the

financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements ¡n an appropriate operational, economic, or

historical context. Our opinion on the basic f¡nancial statements is not affected by this m¡ss¡ng

information.

Other lnformotion

Our aud¡t was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Munic¡pality of Comerío, Puerto Rico's basic financlal statements. The

accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional

analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Locol

Governments, ond Non-Profit Orgonizotions, and is not a required part of the basic flnancial statements.

Such information is the respons¡bil¡ty of management and was derived from and relate directly to the

underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financ¡al statements. The

information has been subjected to the aud¡t¡ng procedures applied ln the audit of the basic financ¡al

statements and certa¡n add¡t¡onal procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
d¡rectly to the underlying account¡ng and other records used to prepare the basic financ¡al statements

or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other addit¡onal procedures in accordance with

audit¡ng standards generally accepted ¡n the Un¡ted States of Amer¡ca. ln our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fa¡rly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whole.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOPS REPORT (CONTINUED}:

(Nher Report¡ng Required by Government Aud¡ting Stando¡ds

ln accordance with Government Auditing Stondords, we have also issued our report dated December 23,

2015, on our consideration of the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty of Comerío internal control over financial reporting and

on our tests of ¡ts compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant

agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to descr¡be the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an op¡nion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an

integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Stondords in considering

Municipality of Comerío internal control over f¡nancial reporting and compliance.

<*@,
Carlos--R. Díaz. CPA, PSC

License No. 275

Expire December 1, 2018
December 23, 2015
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

The stamp No.8199122 ofthe Puerto Rico

Society of Certified Publ¡c Accountants was

affixed to the original of this report.



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERIO

MANAGEMEN?S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

INTRODUCCION

The following discuss¡on presents an overv¡ew of the financial position and financial act¡v¡t¡es of the

Mun¡c¡pal¡ty Autonomous of Comerío (The Municipality) for the year ended June 30,2015. This

d¡scuss¡on was prepared by the Municipality management and should be read in conjunction w¡th the
financial statements and notes thereto, whlch follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHTIGHTS

The f¡nanc¡al position on the Mun¡c¡pality rema¡ns strong at June 30, 2015, with total assets of

S51,652,573, total liabilit¡es of 59,387,155, and total net assets of 551,974,945. Mun¡c¡pality net position

increased 590,993 in compar¡son with June 30, 2074 balance of 551,883,952. An overview of each

statement is presented below along with a f¡nancial analysis of the transactions ¡mpacting the

statement.

Condensed financ¡al statements for the Municipal¡ty at June 30, 2015.

Condensed Statement of Net Position
20L4 2015

Assets

Capital Assets

Other Assets

L¡ab¡l¡ties, Deferred lnflows of Resources and Net Position

Long-Term Debt
Other L¡abilities

Deferred Municipal Tax

lnvested in Cap¡tal Assets

Restr¡cted for Debt Services

Capital Projects
Replacements and Others
Unrestr¡cted

Total Net Pos¡tion

s54,089,40s ss4,0s0,162
8.090,140 7.602,47L

62.179.545 67.652.573

8,s61,049 8,737,521
7,479,004 t.255.644

70,026.3s7 9.387,\6s

269,236 290,463

53,589,970
1,L21,057
2,O92,O22

704,767
(s.623.8s8)

551J!&19s2

53,697 ,807
r,795,496
7,s90,417

5629,7s4
(5,238,s29)

sst.974-945



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COMERIO

MANAGEMENTS DTSCUSSIOiI AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUEDI

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Condense Statement of act¡v¡t¡es

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants

Capital Grants

General Revenue:
Taxes:

Property Tax

Municipal Tax

Sale Tax

Construction Excise Taxes

Grants and Entitlements
Others

Expenditures
General Administration
Publ¡c Safety
Education, culture and Recreational

Public Works and San¡tat¡on

Health and Welfare
Publ¡c Relat¡on
Plann¡ng and General Services

lnte rest

Housing

Changes in Net Posit¡on

Net Pos¡t¡on at Beginn¡ng

Net Posit¡on at End

20L4

5 668,2s9
2,338,757
L,787,9s3

2015

689,044
2,736,376
t,093,702

1,359,839
547 ,998

L,465,481
94,66s

8,754,038
437 ,166

77 .467 ,550

6,144,572
755,299
987,100

4,324,777
2,028,884

431,894
648,457
240,638
479,559

15.382,ss3

L,076,753
s20,208

7,777 ,537
!L5,77 6

8,423,647
442,349

16.275,427

6,603,402
767,462
949,9LL

3,856,338
2,389,981

355,479
627,277
147,U4
497 ,340

L5.r84,434

1,084,997 90,993

s0.798,955 s1.883.952

ss1.883.9s2 ss7.974.945



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERIO

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUEDI

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

USING THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

The Municipaliq/s f¡nanc¡al statements were prepared In accordance with standards issued by the

Governmental Account¡ng Standards Board (GASB). ln June 1999, the GASB ¡ssued Statement No.34,

Financial Statements and Management's Discussions and Analysis for State and Local Governments. The

flnancial statement presentation required by GASB Statement No. 34 provides a comprehens¡ve, ent¡ty-

wide perspect¡ve of the Municipal¡ty's assets, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net assets,

revenues, expenditures, changes in net position and cash flows.

The financial statements report information of the Municipality's as a whole and ¡nclude the financial

results of Rio Plata Development, a Bus¡ness Type Division of the Municipality'

OVERVIEW OF BASICS FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

The Municipal¡Vs financial statements include three components: (1) the government-wide financ¡al

statements, (2) the fund financial statements, and (3) the notes to the financ¡al statements (collect¡vely

known as the bas¡c financial statements). This report also contains addit¡onal required supplementary

informat¡on (budgetary schedules) ¡n addition to the basic f¡nancial statements themselves. These

components are descrlbed below:

Government-wide Financ¡al statements

fhe government-wide finoncial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the

Munic¡palivs operations and finance as a whole in a manner similar to private-sector bus¡ness. These

statements prov¡de short-term and long-term ¡nformat¡on about the Municipali§/s financial posit¡on,

which ass¡st the Municipality's management to determine the economic cond¡tion at the end of the

fiscal year. These financial statements are prepared using the flow of economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This basically means that these financial statements follow

methods that are sim¡lar to those used by most business. They take into account all revenues and

expenses connected with the f¡scal year ended June 30, 2015 even if cash involved have not been

received or paid. The government-wide fiscal statements include: (1) the statements of net assets and

(2) the statements of activities.

Statement of Net Assets

The statement of net assets presents all of the Municipality's assets and l¡abilities, with the difference

between these two ¡tems reported as "net position" (equity). Over time, ¡ncreases or decreases ¡n the

net assets may serve as a useful ¡ndicator of whether the financial pos¡tion of the Municipal¡ty is either

improv¡ng or deter¡orating.



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATIW OF COMERIO

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANAIYSIS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Statement of Activ¡ties

The statement of activit¡es presents information show¡ng how the Municipality's net assets changed

during the fiscal year ended June 30,2015. All changes in net asset are reported as soon as the

underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,

revenues and expenses are reported ¡n th¡s statement for some items that will not result in cash flows

until future fiscal periods (such as uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). This

statement also presents a compar¡son between direct expenses and program revenues for each function

of the Municipal¡ty.

Both of the abovementioned financial statements present all the governmental activ¡t¡es of the

Municipality, which consist mostly by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (such as federal grants).

Most services provided by the Municipal¡ty fall into this category, including culture, recreat¡on and

education, general government, health and sanitation, public safety, public housing and welfare, etc.

Fund Financial Statements

The Mun¡cipality's fund financial statements, consist of: (1) the balance sheet - governmental funds and

(2) the statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.

These financial statements report the financial position and results of operations of the Municlpali§/s
government funds.

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over recourses that have been

segregated for specific activ¡ties of objectives. The Municipal¡ty, like most other state and local

governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal

requirements. Each fund is consldered an independent fiscal ent¡ty accounted for w¡thin a set of self-

balancing accounts that comprise ¡ts assets, t¡abil¡ties, fund equity, revenue, and expend¡tures, Fund

accounting segregates fund according to the¡r intended purpose and is used to aid management in

demonstrating compliance with legal, financlal and contractual prov¡sions.

The fund f¡nanc¡al statements focus on: (1) individual parts of the Mun¡cipality's government and (2)

reporting the Municipality's operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements.

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality classifies its funds with¡n the following fund

categories: (1) general fund, (2) debt service fund, (3) special revenue funds and (4) capital projects

funds (collectively known as the "governmental funds").

Governmental funds are used to account for all of the serv¡ces provided by the Mun¡c¡pality.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental

activit¡es in the governmental-wide financ¡al statements. However, unlike the government-wide

f¡nanc¡al statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows

of expendable resources. They also focus on the balances of expendable resources available at the end

of the f¡scal year. This approach is known as us¡ng the flow of current financial resources measurement

focus and the modified accrual bas¡s of accounting. These statements provide a deta¡led short-term view

of the Municipality's f¡nances that assists ¡n determin¡ng whether there will be adequate f¡nancial

recourses available to meet the currents needs of the Municipal¡Vs, that ¡s, evaluating the

Municipali§/s near-term f¡nancing requ¡rements.
8



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAT¡TY OF COMERIO

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Fund Financ¡al Statements (Cont¡nue)

Because the focus of governmental fund is narrower than that of the government-wide financ¡al

statements, ¡t is useful to compare the fund information presented for governmental fund with s¡m¡lar

Information presented for governmental activ¡t¡es ¡n the government-wide financial statements. By

do¡ng so, readers may better understand the long-term ¡mpact of the Municipality's near-term financial

decisions.

For financial report¡ng purposes the Municipal¡ty has two major funds: (1) the general fund and (2) the

debt service fund.

Component Un¡t

Empresa Mun¡cipal Área Recreativa Media Luna is a for Profit OrBanizat¡on created under Law 181 of

August 11, 2011 which amended Law 81 of August 30, L997, known as "Ley de Municipios Autónomos

del Estado L¡bre Asociado de Puerto R¡co" for the purpose of define franchises and municipal enterprises

and authorize municipal¡t¡es to create, purchase, sell, operate and do the necessary commerc¡al activity

related to establish procedures and operat¡ng methods for them.

The Municipal¡ty of Comerío, Puerto Rico (The Owner) holds legal t¡tle of the Organ¡zation thru
Municipal Law Number 17, Series 20!2-2073, of May 15, 2013. The Major of the Municipal¡ty of
Comerío appointed the Board of D¡rectors of five (5) of its staff directors. This Board of Directors is

responsible to establish adm¡nistrative and operating procedures in accordance with laws that govern

these entities. The organization is administered by a Manager designated by the Board of Dírectors.

The Organization entered into agreement with the Munic¡pal¡ty of Comerío providing the use of the
property located in the area. The account¡ng policies followed by the Organizat¡on conform to the

¡ndustry practices and are based on accounting generally accepted in the Un¡ted States of America

(GAAPl.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the bas¡c f¡nancial statements prov¡de additional information that is essential to a full

understand¡ng of the data provided in the government-wide and the fund financial statements. The

notes to the basic financial statements can be found immed¡ately following the basic financial

statements.

Required Supplemeniary lnformation

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary ¡nformation

consisting of a budgetary compar¡son between actual operating results with the or¡ginal budget and the

final amended budBet for the general fund.



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RI€O

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERIO

MANAGEME¡ÚT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

ANALYSIS OF FII\¡ANCIAI POSITION AND RESUTTS OF OPERATIOf{s

Statements of Net Posit¡on

The statement of net assets presents the assets, liabil¡ties and net assets of the Mun¡c¡pality as of the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The net assets are displayed in three parts, ¡nvested ¡n capital assets

restr¡cted an unrestr¡cted. Restricted net asset may either be expendable or nonexpendable and are

those asset are restr¡cted by law o by an external donor. Unrestricted net assets, wh¡le they are

generally designated for specific purposes. The statement of net assets, along with the Mun¡cipality's

basic f¡nanc¡al statements, is prepared under the accrual basis of accountin& whereby revenues are

recognized when reallzed and expenses are recorded when the serv¡ce or good is received, regardless of
when the cash ¡s exchanged.

Cash and cash equ¡valents represents 5.89% of total assets wh¡le cash w¡th fiscal agent represents 2.11%

of it. Capital assets amount b A7.67% of total assets. The other 4.33% represents receivables, and

restricted cash.

Municipali§/s cash and cash equivalents changed from 53,584,746 at June 30, 2014 to 53,629,040 at

June 30, 2015. Cap¡tal Assets decreased from S54,089,¿105 to S54,050,162 for the same per¡od.

Current l¡ab¡lities consists pr¡mary of accounts payable and accrued expenses which represent 13.38% of
total liabilit¡es. Long term debt represents 86.62% oftotal l¡abil¡t¡es.

Net assets represent the residual ¡nterest in the Mun¡c¡pality's assets after liab¡lities are deducted.

N et Assets

!l l,l',

l:, -1l':

:' 1.,_r0,,

) l ,r,t:

I lnvested ln Capitall Assets

§ Replacement And Others
10



«)itMoÍtwEAllll oF ruERTo Rlco
MUÍIIO PAI¡TY OF COMERIO

Ír,AI{AGEMETTS IISCUSIIIOÍ{ A,lD A¡lAtYSlS (OOrnf{UEDI
YEAR EIIDED JUÍIE 30, 2015

- 
$atemenB of tlet Poetdon (Gondnued)

;- 
As of June 30, 2015 net assets amounted to 551,974945. Net posit¡on invested in capital assets

amounted to 554,050,152 (103.9f %). Replacement and others net assets amounted to 5L,722,862

(3.31%).

The follow¡ng ¡llustrations demonstrate the Mun¡cipalivs major sources of revenues and expenses.

I Component Unit

r Operating Grants

r Cap¡tal Grants

r Property Taxes

I Municipal Tax

I Sales Tax

r Grants and
Entitlements

: lnterest and Others

11



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERIO

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Cap¡tal Assets

The Municipal¡ty's ¡nvestment in capital assets as of June 30, 2015, amounts to 579,625,355 with an

accumulated deprec¡ation of 525,709,553 (including deprec¡ation charges for the year totaled

51,995,958), leaving a net book value of 553,915,802. This ¡nvestment in cap¡tal assets ¡ncludes land,

constructions in progress, buildings, improvements, equ¡pment, ¡nfrastructure, machinery and

equipment and vehicles. lnfrastructure assets are ¡tems that are normally immovable and of value only

to the state, such as roads bridges, streets and sidewalks, dra¡nage systems, lighting systems, and s¡milar

items.

The Municipal¡ty finances a sign¡ficant portion of its construction act¡vit¡es through bond or notes

issuances. The proceeds from bond and notes issuances designated for construct¡on activities are

committed in its ent¡rety for such purposes and cannot be used for any other purposes.

Debt Adm¡n¡strat¡on

The puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the ¡ssuance of general obligation munic¡pal

bonds and notes for the payment of which the good fa¡th, credit and tax¡ng power of each mun¡cipality

may be pledged.

The appl¡cable law also requires that, ¡n order for a Municipality to be able to ¡ssue additional general

obl¡gation bonds and notes, such Munic¡pal¡ty must have sufficient "payment capaciv. Act No.64

prov¡des that a Munic¡pal¡ty has suff¡c¡ent "payment capacity' to incur addit¡onal general obligation

debt if the depos¡ts ¡n such municipal¡ty's Redemption Fund and the annual amounts collected w¡th

respect to such Munic¡paliq/s Special Add¡tional Tax (as defined below), as projected by GDB, w¡ll be

suff¡cient to service to maturity the Mun¡cipaliqy's outstand¡ng general obligation debt and the

additional proposed general obligation debt ("Payment Capacity").

The Municipalis is required under applicable law to levy the Special Additional Tax in such amounts as

shall be required for the payment of ¡ts general obligation mun¡c¡pal bonds and notes. ln add¡tion,

princlpal of and interest on all general obligation municipal bonds and notes and on all municipal notes

issued ¡n ant¡cipation of the issuance of general obl¡gat¡on bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a

f¡rst l¡en on the MunicipaliVs basic tax revenues.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERíO

STATEMETÚÍ OF NET POSMON

As OFJUNE 30, 2015

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

ASSETS

Cash in bank

Cash with fiscal agent
lnvestment ¡n cert¡ficates of depos¡t

Accounts receivable:

Property tax

Sale and usage tax

Government agenc¡es

Others

Restricted cash

Other assets

Capital assets, net

Total assets

UABtUTTES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Advance from other governments

Deposits

Due to other governments

LonB-term debt:
Due with¡n one year

Due ¡n more than one year

Total L¡ab¡lit¡es

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Deferred mun¡c¡paltax

GOVERNMENIAT
ACTIVITIES

5 3,s77,286

L,301,556

500,000

732,759

767,823

521,674

53,057.224

59.95r,727

734,633
t40,332
77,153

252,467

1,908,406

5.870.760

8.977 .75L

290.463

1,295,496
7,590,417

$.259,629].

s50.683,508

BUSINESS -TYPE
ACnVtTtES

S s1,7s4

7,774

16,361

629,754
2,270

992,938

1.700,851

57,059

t60,972
t97,M3

409.4L4

640,583

629,754
27,tOO

st.79t-!!

TOTAL

5 3,629,040

1,301,556

600,000

732,L59

161,823

529,444

16,36t
629,754

2,270
54.050.162

61,652.573

797,692
L40,332
7r,753

252,467

2,069,318
6,062.203

9.387.16s

290.463

COMPONEf{T
UNIT

5 44,760

33,914

4,279
19.986

toz.939

49,793

49.793

53.146

S53.146

NEf POSITION

lnvested ¡n cap¡tal assets, net of related liabil¡t¡es 5g,057,224
Restricted for:

Debt service

Other provided by grantors

Replacements and other
Unrestricted

Total net pos¡tion

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

53,697,807

!,295,496
1,590,477

629,754
(5,238.529)

ss1p7!L9!15
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF COMERíO

STATEMETTT OF AcflvmEs
FOR THE YEAR Ef{DEDJUNE 30,2015

PROGRAM REVENUES

CHARGE OPERATIÍ{G CAP]TAI GRAÍÚTS f{ET

FOR GRANTS At{D Af{D (EXPEÍ{SEI/ COMPOT{Ef{T

FUÍ{CNO 5 Af{D PROGRAMS EXPEÍ{SES SERVICES COI{TRIBUTIONS COÍ{TRIBUNOÍ{S REVEÍ{UE UN]T

other med¡a

6overnmental activ¡t¡es:

General adm¡n¡stration S (5,503,¿tO2) S 208,219

Publ¡c safety
Education, culture and

recreat¡onal

(76r,8621 187,930

(949,91U s 7,135 s21,0s0

Publ¡c works and sanitat¡on (3,856,338)

Health and urelfare (2,389,981) 73,909 LAtg,ll7
Communication, press and

s (6,39s,183) 5 32t,279
(s73,932)

142r,7261
s1,093,702 12,762,6361

(496,9ss)

(3ss,479)
(622,2771

110,755

QA,714I
a2.o4l

(355,479)

Planning and general service |t622,2771

lnterest (119.130) 

-

(119.130)

Total governmental activ¡ties (15,658,380) 81.0¡t4 2.736.316 1,093.702 OL.747.3181 32L.279

Bus¡ness type-act¡vities:
Hous¡ng
lnterest

1497,3401 608,09s
|.28.7r41

Totalbus¡nesstype-activ¡t¡es (526.054) 608,095

Component Unit:
Hosp¡tality

Total

(316.001)

1s26.0s4) 82.O4t (316.001)

s(16.184.434) s689.044 s2.736.316 s1.093.702 s|.11.66s.2771 s (s.278)

(Continue)
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALTTY OF COMERíO

STATEMENT oF AcnvmEs (corcnNuEDl

FoR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2015

GOVERI{MENTAI BUSINESS.TYPE

ACTIVINES ACTIVITIES TOTAT COMPONENT UNIT

Net (expense)/revenue 5ÍL.747.3781 S 82,041 5Ot,665,2771 5(44.599)

General revenue:
I axes:

Property taxes
Mun¡cipal tax
Sale and usage tax
Construction exc¡se tax

Grants and ent¡tlements
L¡censes and perm¡ts

lnterest
Rent
Other

11,800 11,800

25 ,9L7 1,008 26,925
340,191 340,191

t,076,753
520,208

1,177 ,537
Lrs,776

8,423,647

1,076,753
s20,208

t,t77 ,537
ItS,776

8,423,647

73,22:0 236 63,433 L4,208

Transfer from component unit 49,977 (49.9771

Total general revenues Lf,755.026 L,244 71.756,270 (35,769)

Changes in net position 7,708 83,28s 90,993 (30,491)

Net pos¡t¡on at beginning 50.675,800 7.2O8,L52 51,883,952 83,637

Net posit¡on at end 550.683É08 51291A3' S 51B7tU¡45 5l3Jtt6

The accompany¡ng notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERfO

BarA cE SHEEr

GoVERNMEMAL FUNDS

As OFJUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS

MAJOR FUNDS

GENERAT

FUND

57,879,740

400,000

550,7s8
96,32s
4,943

642,572

§3-674338

DEBT OTHER TOTAL

SERVICE GOVERNMENTATGOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS

Cash:

Cash in bank

Cash with flscal agent
lnvestment in sav¡ng certificates

Rece¡vables:
Property taxes

Sale and usage tax
Due from other governmental agencies

Due from other funds

Total assets

Due to other governmental agencies

Total l¡abil¡t¡es

Deferred inflows of resources:

Deferred property tax
Deferred municipal tax

Fund balance
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for other purposes

Unassigned
Total fund balance

Total l¡ab¡lit¡es and fund balance

252.467

838.349

429,067
290.453

719.530

2.tt6.459
2,LL6 .459 1 .295 .496

s3É74&!8 sUr41J00

5L,697,547

s1,195,001 1o6,sss
200,000

87,401
65,498

s16,731

$4!1pOO 9É20É33

51s2,455
135,389

642,572

930,416

46,404

46.4M

L,295,496
1,590,4r7

LIABILITIE' DEFERRED OUTFTOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BATANCE

L,s90.477

s2.520.833

53,s77,287
1,301,556

500,000

732,L59
t6L,823
521,6-14

642,s72

uÉ31p1

5 662,24L
r40,332
7L,r53

642,572
252.467

L,76A,765

475,471
290,463

76s,934

L,?95,496
7,590,417
2.L16.459
5.002,372

s7.s37.O7L

Liab¡lities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses S SOS,zSe

Advances from other governments 4,943
Depos¡ts 77,153
Due to other fund

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUN¡CIPAIITY OF COMERíO

REcoNctLlAnoN OF THE GovERNMEfüraL FUNDS

EAIANCE SHEET TO THE STAIEMENT OF NET POSMOf{

AS OFJUNE 30, 2015

Fund Balances ¡n Governmental Funds 5 5,002,372

Amounts reported for Governmentol Ad¡vities in the stotement of Net

Posilion ore d¡fÍerent becouse:

Capital assets used in governmental act¡v¡t¡es are not f¡nancial

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 53,057 '224

Receivables deferred in governmental fund financial statements 475,47I

Long-term l¡abilit¡es are not due and payable in the current per¡od

and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Bonds and notes Payable (5,645,000)

Accrued interest 172,393l,

compensated absences (1,5rt4,006)

Advances from cRlM (590'160)

Total net pos¡t¡on ¡n statement of net posit¡on s50-683108

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERíO

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BATANCE-GOVERÍIIMEf{TAt FUNDS

FoR THE YEAR ENDEDJU E30,2015

MAJOR FUNDS

DEBT

SERVICE

FUNDS

211,444

449,025

OTHER TOTAL

GOVERf{MENTAT GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS FUNDS

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes
Municipaltax
Sales and usage tax
Construct¡on excise taxes

Grants and ent¡tlements
Rental income
Licenses and perm¡ts

lnterest
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
General admin¡strat¡on
Public safety
Education and recreat¡onal
Public works and san¡tation
Health, welfare and social development
Commun¡cat¡on, press and other media
Planning and general serv¡ces

Debt service:

Pr¡ncipal
lnterest

Total expend¡tures

Excess of revenue over expenditures

Other f¡nanc¡nt sources (uses):

Operating transfer from other funds

Operating transfer to other funds

Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues and other financing
sources (under) expenditures and
other financ¡ng sources

Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

(334.168) 4s,9oo 338.?45

GENERAL

FUt{D

s t,167 ,291.
520,208
728,5t2
rls,776

4342,603
4L4,L@

11,800
24,970
20.335

11.345.515

5,797,972
667,ll2
360,295

2,238,OO3

719,568
355,479
490,918

t9,r94
37 .470

10.679,9s1

665.664

s0,235
(384,403)

947

667.420

377 ,000
155.881

532.881

128.539

46,158
(2s8)

s3,911,062

3.911.062

9,238
7 t,549

301,327
2,705,769
L,663,629

4,7sO.912

(839,8s0)

338,245

(s01,605)

2.092.022

s1t90ltu

5 1.,378,739
520,208

L,777 ,537
175,776

L2,253,665
414,100

11,800
24,970
2L.302

15,918,097

s,801,210
738,661
667,622

4,943,L72
2,383,t97

355,479
490,918

396,194
t93,79L

t5.963.744

(45.6471

434,638
(384.661)

49.977

331,496 t74,419

L.784.963 L,L2t.057

5 2J16-45r 51295196

4,330

4.998.O42

s 5-002,372

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financ¡al statements.
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COMMONWEAITH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERíO

REcoNctltaro Of THE STATEMET{T OF REvENuEs, EXPENDIURES

Ar{D CHANGES lN FUND BAtANCES OF GoVERNMENTAL

Fu Ds To THE STATEMENT OF AcnvmEs

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net change ¡n fund balances - total governmental funds s 4,330

Amounts reported for Governmental Adivit¡es in the Stotement of Activities

ore different becouse:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expend¡tures. However, ¡n

the statement of act¡vities and changes in net pos¡tion, the cost of those

assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as

deprec¡ation expense. This is the amount of cap¡tal assets recorded in

the current period. 2,270,749

Deprec¡at¡on expense on capital assets ¡s reported in the statement of
activities, but they do not requ¡re the use of current financial resources.

Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds. Q,321,9941

Governmental fund report proceed from loans as other financial sources,

whereas the proceed from loan increase the long term debt in the
statement of net posit¡on. 377,OOO

Changes in accrued expenses which do not requ¡re the use of current
financial resources:

lnterest 74,16L

Compensating absences 17L3,7461

Deferred property tax (301,986)

Governmental funds report payments of other long-term debt as

expenditures whereas the payments reduce the long-term debt in the
in the statement of net posit¡on. 79'794

Chonges in Net Position oÍ Govem,nentol Activities 5 Jf,og

The accompanying notes are an ¡ntegral part of these financial statements.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNIC¡PAIIW OF COMERíO

STATEMEMT OF FINA CIAI. POSMON-PROPRIETARY FUND

Jur{E 30, 2015

Assm

Current assets:
Cash

Accounts receivable:
HUD

Other

Miscellaneous prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Property and equipment

Restr¡cted deposits

Total assets

LABILIÍES AND NEf POSMON

L¡abilities:
Current liab¡l¡t¡es:

Current maturit¡es of mortgage note
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Long-term liabilities:
Tenants depos¡ts
Mortgage note, net of current maturities

Total liabilit¡es

Net position, temporally restr¡cted

Total l¡ab¡lítíes and net pos¡t¡on

PRoPRIETARY FUND

Río PIATA DEVEIoPMEMT

S s1.7s4

7,774
16,351
24.t35
2.270

78,r59

992,938

629.754

slJ(DÉ5I

s 160,912
44,O48

204.960

13,011
T9L,M3
20 .454

409.4r4

t,29L.437

s1.700.851

The accompany¡ng notes are an integral part of these financ¡al statements.
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OOMMOilWEATI{ OF PUERTO RICO

i,UilICIPAI¡TY OF COMEÚO

STAfUE]ff Of ACIfuIES . PROPOETARY FUÍTD

YEAR E DED JUfiE !)0, 2015

L

L

L

Revenu6:
Rent
Financ¡al

Others

Total rqrenues

E¡eensGs:
Adm¡n¡strative
Utilities
Operat¡ng maintenance
Taxes and ¡nsurance
Depreciation
lnterest

Total Erpenses

Charye ¡n ná pos¡tion

Net position, beginning of year

Net po6idon, end year

PnoPiIEfA¡v FU,{D

Rfc PT.ATA t EyErmff¡úf

S eoe,oss
1,008

236

6(B.339

160,715
9,327

L69,123
40,807

LL7,367
28.714

526,054

83,285

L.20E..152

s729X,J,la

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMOÍ{WEAITI{ OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUW OF COMERíO

STATEMEÍÚf OF CASH FLOWS. PROPRIEÍARY FUND

FoR THE YEAR EÍ{DEDJUÍTIE 30, 2015

Cash flows from operat¡ng activities:
Receipts:

Rental rece¡pts
lnterest receipts
Other operating rece¡pts

Total receipts

D¡sburseménts:
Adm¡n¡strat¡ve
Management fee
Utilities
Salaries and wages
Operating and maintenance
Property insurance
Miscellaneous taxes and insurance
lnterest on f¡rst mortgage

Total disbursements

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flors from invel¡ng act¡v¡t¡es:
Depos¡ts to the reserve for replacement account
withdrawals at reserve for replacement account
Net deposits to the residual receipt5 account
Net purchase of fixed assets

Net cash used in inyesting activ¡ties

PRoPRIEÍARY FUND

RIo P]AIA DEVEToPMEÍ{Í

S 5L4,22L
1,008

236

615.465

37,080
49,588

9,327
t32,672

99,733
11,306
20,0s5
24,7U

388,476

226.989

(3L,27Ll
to6,126

(73)
(129.369)

s fs4.s87)

(Continue)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICTPAUTY OF COMERIO

STATEMETT OF CASH Frows - PRopRrErARy FU D(Co n uE)

FoRTHE YEAR E DEDJU E30,2015

Cash flows from operat¡ng act¡v¡t¡es:
Princ¡pal payments- first mortgage

Net cash used in financ¡ng activities

I{et decrease in Cash

Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

Reconc¡liation of chance in total net posit¡on

from operation to net cash provided by
operating astivities:
Change in total net position

Adiustment to reconcile change in total
net pos¡t¡on from operations to nét cash
prov¡ded by op€ratlng activhies:
Deprec¡at¡on expense
(lncrease) decrease in:

Tenant accounts rece¡veble

Cash restricted for tenant security depos¡ts
Accounts payable

Accrued l¡abilit¡es
Tenant security deposits held in trust

Net cesh provided by operat¡ng astivities

PRoPRIETAnY FUND

RfO PTATA DEVETOPMEÍÚÍ

s(147.080)

f1tlz080)

25,322

26.432

s_lLzll

S 83,28s

LL7 ,367

6,t26
225

19,666
545

Qzsl

5226,989

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financ¡al statements.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERíO

NorEs To THE Flf{Ar{oat STATEMET{Ts

JUNE 30, 2015

ORGANIZATION

The Munic¡pality of Comerío (the Municipality) was established in 1826. The Munic¡pality is a

polit¡cal and legal entity with full legislative and adm¡nistrative faculties in every affalr of municipal

character, with perpetual succession, existence and legal personali§ separate and independent

from the government of the Commonwealth of Puerto R¡co.

The munic¡pal government ¡s comprised of the executive and legislative bodies, which are elected

every four years ¡n the Puerto R¡co general elect¡ons. The execut¡ve power is exercised by the Mayor

and the legislat¡ve power by the Municipal Legislative Body, which has fourteen members.

The Munic¡pality provides the following serv¡ces to its commun¡ty: health, public works, education,

public safety, housing, community and social services, welfare, culture and recreat¡on, as well as

many other general and admin¡strat¡ve services.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES

fhe account¡ng and report¡ng policies of the Mun¡cipality relating to the funds ¡ncluded ¡n the

accompanying basic financial statements conform to account¡ng principles generally accepted in the

un¡ted states of America applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted account¡ng

principtes for local governments include those principles prescr¡bed by the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the Amer¡can lnst¡tute of Certified Public Accountants ¡n

the publication entitled Aud¡ts of State and Local Governmental Un¡ts. The more significant

policies of the Municipality are described below.

Report¡ng ent¡ty

A reporting ent¡ty consists of the primary government, component un¡ts, and other organ¡zations

that are included to ensure that f¡nancial statements are not misleadin8. The primary government

of the Munic¡pal¡ty consists of all funds and departments that are not legally separate from the

Municipality. For the Munic¡pality of Comerío, this includes various services including pol¡ce

protect¡on, recreation (including parks), street maintenance and repair, san¡tat¡on, and general

administrat¡ve services. The operat¡on of each of these activ¡ties is directly controlled by

Mun¡cipality Legislat¡ve Body through the budgetary process.

As requ¡red by US GAAP, these financial statements present the Municipality and its component

unit.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COMERíO

NorEs To THE FtNANclAt STATCMENTS (Comtlueo)
JUNE 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF STGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POIICIES (CONTINUED)

D¡scretely Presented Component Unit

The Empresa Mun¡c¡pal Area Recreativa Media Luna (ARML) ¡s a legally separate municipal

corporation created to operate and manage a hotel, restaurant, act¡v¡ties salon, pools and

recreational areas. Members of the Board are appointed by the Mayor and are executive

employees of the Munic¡pality. The Municipal¡ty provides f¡nanc¡al support to ARML by providing

the physical structures, land and utilit¡es expenses without charge.

Government wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (¡.e., the statement of net position and the statement of

changes in net position) report informat¡on on all the activities of the pr¡mary government and its

component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activ¡ty has been removed from these

statements. Governmental activit¡es which normally are supported mainly by taxes and

intergovernmental revenues are reported separately from business-type activ¡t¡es, which rely to a

significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported

separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government ¡s

financially accountable.

The statement of act¡vities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given

function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly

identifiable with a spec¡fic function or segment. Program revenues include a) charges to customers

or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, serv¡ces, or pr¡vileges provided by a

given function or segment and b) grants and contributions that are restr¡cted to meeting the

operat¡onal or capital requlrements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not

properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

The fund f¡nancial statements segregate transact¡ons related to certa¡n functions or activ¡ties in

separate funds in order to aid financ¡al management and to demonstrate legal compliance. These

statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non-

major funds are aggregated and presented ¡n a s¡ngle column.

The Municipali§ reports the following major governmental funds:

1) General Fund

This is the operating fund of the Munlcipality and accounts for all financial resources, except

those requ¡red to be accounted for in another fund.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERfO

NoTES TO THE FTNANCTAI STaTEMENTS (COrmrUro)
JUNE 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF STGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOUCtES (CONTTNUED)

Government wide and fund financial statements (Continued)

2) Debt Serv¡ce Fund

This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources from add¡tion property tax and
sales and use tax for and the payment of, general long-term debt princ¡pal, interest and related
cost.

Measurement focus, basis of account¡ng and financial statement presentat¡on

The government-w¡de Statement of Net Pos¡tion and the Statement of Act¡v¡t¡es, both government
and business type activ¡ties, are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual bas¡s of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at
the time the liabili§ is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues ¡n the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all el¡g¡bility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.

The Bovernmental fund financial statements are presented using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of account¡ng. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Under this method revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible w¡thin the current per¡od or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available
if they are collected with¡n 90 days (except property taxes that are 60 days) of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a l¡ability ¡s ¡ncurred, except for debt
service, compensated absences and claims and judgments expendltures which are reported when
payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. Only the port¡on of special assessments receivable due w¡thin the current fiscal per¡od
is considered to be suscept¡ble to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items
are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

As a general rule the effect of ¡nterfund act¡v¡ty has been elim¡nated from the government-wide
financial statements. Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods, services, or pr¡v¡leBes provided, 2) operat¡ng grants and contributions, and 3)
cap¡tal grants and contr¡butions, including special assessments. lnternally ded¡cated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likew¡se, general revenues include
all taxes.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy
to use restricted resources first, than unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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COMMOÍ{WEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF COMERíO

t{orEs To THE Flr{a¡{oAL STATEMEiÍR (ConnNUED)

Juf{E :10, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGÍIIFICÁIIIT ACCOU]YITNG POUCIES (COÍiITINUED)

€ash, cash eguivalenr, cash with fiscal agent and ¡n\restment

The Mun¡cipality's finance director is responsible for ¡nvesting available resources. The Municipality

¡s restricted by law to invest only in savings accounts and certificates of depos¡t with banks qual¡fied

as a depository of public funds by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department (PRTD) or ¡n instruments of
the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB). The Mun¡c¡pal¡ty's pol¡cy is to ¡nvest any

excess cash ¡n interest bear¡ng depos¡ts with institutions qualif¡ed by the PRTD. Earn¡ngs from these

funds are re€orded ¡n the corresponding fund as ¡nterest ¡ncome.

Cash with fiscal agent in the governmental fund consists of unused proceeds from bonds and notes

issued for the acqu¡sit¡on and construction of major cap¡tal ¡mprovements. Cash w¡th f¡scal agent in

the debt service fund represents special addit¡onal property tax collections retained by the

Commonwealth of Puerto R¡co and restricted for the payment of the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty's debt service, as

established by law. Cash with fiscal agent are deposits w¡th the GDB.

The Municipality considers all investments w¡th an or¡ginal maturity of three months or less to be

cash equ¡valents.

pursuant to the Statement of lnvestment Guidelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of
Puerto R¡co the balances deposited ¡n commercial banks by the Municipal¡ty are insured by the

Federal Deposit lnsurance corporation (FDlc) generally up to a max¡mum of s250,000 per depositor.

ln add¡t¡on, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty are fully collateralized

for the amount ¡n excess of federal depos¡tory insurance. All secur¡t¡es pledged as collateral are

held by a8ents designated by the Commonweahh's Secretary of Treasury but not in the

Munic¡paliq/s name. Deposits with GDB are uninsured and uncollateralized and thus represent a

custod¡al credit risk, because ¡n the event that this financ¡al ¡nstitution fails, the Munic¡pality may

not be able to recover these depos¡ts.

The GDB'S liquidity was adversely affected by a s¡gn¡ficant increase ¡n credit spreads for obl¡gat¡ons

of the Commonwealth and its publ¡c corporat¡ont the Commonwealth's l¡mited capital market

access, and a s¡gn¡ficant reduct¡on of liqu¡dity in the local Puerto Rico cap¡tal markets' Then, the

cred¡t rat¡ng downgrades could further adversely affect the GOB'S liquidity. Howevér, no losses

related to defuults by GDB on deposit transactions have been incurred by the Mun¡c¡pality through

June 30, 2015.

lnterfund receivables and payables

Act¡vit¡es between funds that are representative of lending/borrow¡nB arrangements outstand¡ng at

the end of the fiscal year are referred to as e¡ther due tofrom other funds (¡'e', the current port¡on

of ¡nterfund loans) or advances toffrom other funds (i.e., the non-current port¡on of interfund

loans). lnterfunds receivables and payables with¡n the governmental activit¡es are eliminated ¡n the
statement of net pos¡t¡on.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOU TING POTICIES (COÍ{TIT{UED)

capital assets

Capital assets, wh¡ch ¡nclude property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (which is normally
immovable and of value only to the Mun¡c¡pality, such as roads, bridges, streets sidewalks, and

drainage system), are reported in the applicable governmental columns in the Sovernment-w¡de
financial statements. The Municipal¡ty elected not to capitalize ¡nfrastructure acquired before the
¡mplementation date of GASB 34 (June 30, 2003).

Cap¡tal assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost or est¡mated h¡stor¡cal cost.

Contributed assets are recorded at fa¡r market value as of the date donated. Add¡tions,

¡mprovements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are

capital¡zed. Other costs incurred for repairs and ma¡ntenance are expensed as ¡ncurred. when
h¡stor¡cal cost is not available ¡t ¡s estimated using h¡storic sales of the year of the acqu¡sition of the
related capital assets.

Depreciat¡on ¡n cap¡tal assets ¡s cálculated on the straight-line basis over the following est¡mated

useful lives:

Bu¡ld¡ng
Equ¡pment
lnfrastructu re
Building improvements
Furnish¡ng

Computer
Veh¡cles

40 years

5 years
40 years

40 years

5 years

3 years

5 years

The Munic¡pality decides when to cap¡talize an asset using a capitalizat¡on threshold of S25.

lmpa¡ment of Capital Ass€ts

The Munic¡pality periodically evaluates long-term assets for ¡mpa¡rment in accordance with GASB

Statement No. 34, (Bosk Financial Stotements ' ond Monogemen(s Discussion ond Anolysis - for
Stote ond Locol Governments) and GASB No.42, (Accounting ond Finonciol Report¡ng fot lmpoinnent
of Copitol Assets ond for lnsuronce Recoveries Govemments) are required to evaluate prom¡nent

events or changes in c¡rcumstances affecting cap¡tal assets to determ¡ne whether impa¡rment of a

capital asset has occurred. Such events or changes ¡n c¡rcumstances that may be indicative of
¡mpairment include evidence of phys¡cal damage, enactment or approval of laws or regulat¡ons or
other changes ¡n environmental factors, technological changes or evidence of obsolescence,

changes ¡n the manner or duration of use of a cap¡tal asset, and construct¡on stoppage. A cap¡tal

asset generally should be considered impaired if both (a) the decline in serv¡ce util¡ty of the capital

asset is large ¡n magnitude and (b) the event or change in c¡rcumstance ¡s outs¡de the normal life
cycle ofthe capital asset.
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MUNICIPAUTY OF COMERíO
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2. SUMMARY OF S|GNTFICANT ACCOUIYTING POUCIES (COilnNUED)

lmpa¡ment of Cap¡tel Assets (Cont¡nued)

lmpaired capital assets that will no longer be used by the government should be reported at the
lower of carrying value or fair value. lmpairment losses on capital assets that w¡ll continue to be

used by the government should be measured us¡ng the method that best reflects the dim¡nished

serv¡ce utility of the cap¡tal asset. lmpairment of capital assets with physical damage generally

should be measured us¡ng a restoration cost approach, an approach that uses the est¡mated cost to
restore the capital asset to ¡dent¡fu the port¡on of the histor¡cal cost of the cap¡tal asset that should

be written off. lmpa¡rment of cap¡tal assets that are affected by enactment or approval of laws or
regulations or other changes ¡n env¡ronmental factors or are subject to technolog¡cal changes or
obsolescence generally should be measured using a service un¡ts approach, an approach that
compares the service units provided by the capital asset before and after the ¡mpairment event or
change in c¡rcumstance. lmpairment of capital assets that are subject to a change in manner or
durat¡on of use generally should be measured using a serv¡ce units approach, as described above, or
using deflated depreciated replacement cost, an approach that quantifies the cost of the serv¡ce

currently being provided by the cap¡tal asset and converts that cost to historical cost.

Fund balance

Pursuant to the prov¡sions of GASB 54, the fund balances amounts are reported as nonspendable,

restr¡cted, comm¡tted, assigned and unassigned, based on the relative strength of the constra¡nts

that control how specific amounts can be spent, as described follows:

* @¡CgUg - Represent resources that cannot be spent read¡ly with cash or are legally or
contractually requ¡red not to be sp€nt, including but not limited to ¡nventories, prepa¡d

items, long-term balances of loans and notes rece¡vable.

* Restricted - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated
by constitut¡onal prov¡s¡ons, external resource providers (externally imposed by creditors or
grantors), or through enabling leg¡slat¡on (that ¡s, leg¡slation that creates a new revenue

source and restr¡ct ¡ts use). Effectively, restr¡ctions may be changed or lifted only with the

consent of resource providers.

€. Commttted - Represent resources used for specific purposes, imposed by formal action of
the entivs highest level of dec¡sion mak¡ng author¡ty (governing body throu8h resolutions)

and can only be changed by similar resolut¡ons, no later than the end of the fiscal year.

.:. Assitned - Represent resources intended to be used by the ent¡ty for spec¡fic purposes but
do not meet the cr¡ter¡a to be class¡f¡ed as restricted or committed (generally resolut¡ons

approved by the govern¡ng body). lntent can be expressed by the govern¡ng body, or by an

official or body to wh¡ch the governing bod delegates authority in conform¡ty w¡th the by-

laws of the Author¡ty. ln governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund
balance represents the remaining amount that ¡s not restr¡cted or comm¡tted.
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SUMMARY OF SIGÍ{IFICANT ACCOUl'ffl NG POTICIES (CO''|TI]IUED)

Fund balance (Continued)

* UreCICICC - Represent the residual classification for the entitry's general fund and includes

all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. ln other funds, the
unassigned classificat¡on ¡s used only to report a deficit balance resuhing from overspending

for specific purpose for wh¡ch amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

R¡skf¡nancing

The Munic¡pality carries insurance to cover casualty, theft, tort claims and other losses. Cost of
insurance policies for the year ended June 30, 2015 amounted to 5239,784. The current ¡nsurance

policies have not been cancelled or terminated. ln addition the Municipal Revenue Collect¡on

center (the cRlM) deducted Su5,693 for workers comp€nsation insurance covering all mun¡cipal

employees,

compensated absences

Employees accumulate vacat¡on leave at a rate of 2.5 days per month up to maximum of 60 days.

Unpa¡d vacat¡on time accumulated ¡s fully vested to the employees from the first day of work.

Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a max¡mum 90 days. ln the
event of employee resignat¡on, the employee is paid for accumulated vacations days up to the
maximum allowed. Separation from employment prior to use of all or part of the sick leave

terminates all r¡ghts for compensation, except for employees with ten years or more of service who
are entitled to sick leave pay up to the maximum allowed. Employees' maximum allowed vacations

and vested sick benefits are accounted for in the Statement of Net Posit¡on.

Pens¡ons

GASB 68 requ¡res that the pens¡on expense, as well as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension, be recognized for employe/s proportionate share of
collect¡ve pension expense and collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions. The employee's proportionate share should be determ¡ned using the
employe/s proportion of the collective net pension liability. However, as of the date that financial
statement has been ¡ssued, the ERS has not issued ¡ts financ¡al statements for the year ended.June
30,2Ot4. The information related to the pension plans is not available and accordingly, it has not
been included ¡n the accompanying financ¡al statements of the Municipality for the year ended June

30, 2015.
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SUMMARY OF StGf{TFTCANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES (CONTINUED}

Use of est¡mates

The preparation of financial statements ¡n conformity with accounting pr¡nciples generally accepted

¡n the United States of Amer¡ca requ¡res management to make est¡mates and assumpt¡ons that
affect the reported amounts of assets and l¡abil¡t¡es, and disclosure of cont¡ngent assets and

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expend¡tures/expenses during the report¡ng per¡od. Actual results could d¡ffer from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 23,2015, the date the financial

statements were evaluated to be issued.

PROPERTY TAX

The personal property tax ¡s self assessed by the taxpayer on a return, wh¡ch ¡s to be filed by May 15

of each year with the Municipal Revenue Collector Center (the CRIM), a governmental entity created

by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Real property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each piece of
real state and on each building.

The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current values for personal

property and on esteemed values as of 7957 lor real property tax. The tax on personal property

must be pa¡d in full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real property may be paid in

two installments by July 1 and January 1.

The CRIM is responsible for the billing and collect¡ons of real and personal property taxes on behalf
of all the mun¡cipal¡t¡es of Puerto R¡co. Before the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIM informs

the Mun¡c¡pality of the est¡mated amount of property tax expected to be collected for the ensu¡ng

fiscal year. Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipali§ based on the ¡n¡tial

est¡mated collections. The CRIM is requ¡red by law to prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal
year basis, where by a compar¡son ¡s made between the amounts advanced to the Municipal¡ty and

amounts actually collected from taxpayers.

Th¡s settlement has to be completed on a preliminary bas¡s not later than three months after fiscal
year-end, and a final settlement made not later than s¡x months after year-end. lf the CRIM rem¡ts

to the Mun¡cipality property tax advances, which are less than the tax actually collected, a

receivable from the CRIM is recorded at June 30. However, if advances exceed the amount actually

collected by the cRlM, a l¡ab¡l¡ty to the CRIM ¡s recorded at June 30.

3.
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3. PROPERTY TAX (CONftf{UED)

Residential real property occup¡ed by its owner ¡s exempt by law from the payment of property
taxes on the first S15,00O of the assessed value. For such exempt amounts, the Puerto R¡co

Treasury Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the Mun¡c¡palities, except for property

assessed at less than S3,50O for which no payment is made. fu part of Law No. 83 of August 30,

1991, as amended, the exempt amount to be paid by Puerto Rico Treasury Department to the
Munic¡palities was frozen as of January 1, 1992. ln addition, the law grants a tax exempt¡on from
the payment of personal property taxes of up to S50,0m of the assessed value to reta¡lers hav¡ng

annual net sales of less than S150.000.

The annual rate for fiscal year 2015 is 8.78% for real proper§ and 6.78% for personal property of
wh¡ch 1.03% of both tax rates are for the redempt¡on of public debt ¡ssued by the Commonwealth of
Puerto R¡co. fhe rema¡ning percentage ¡s distributed as follows: (a) 6.096 and 4.096, respect¡vely,
repres€nt the Municipali§/s bas¡c property tax rate, wh¡ch ¡s appropriated for general purposes and

accounted for in the general fund. A port¡on of such amount ¡s depos¡ted ¡n an equal¡zat¡on fund
together w¡th a percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico Electron¡c Lottery and subsidy

from the Commonweahh of Puerto R¡co. From such fund, a d¡str¡but¡on ¡s made to all

mun¡c¡pal¡t¡es; (b) 1.75% represents the spec¡al ad valorem tax restricted for debt service and

accounted for ¡n the debt service fund. The Commonwealth contr¡butes an annual tax rate of 0.2%

ofthe property tax collected and the rema¡n¡ng rate ¡s pa¡d by the taxpayer.

On January 25, 20q), Publ¡c Law 42, as amended, was enacted which authorized the CRIM to obta¡n

a loan up to 5200 million, and for a term not exceeding 30 years, to allow for the financing of the
debt that the mun¡cipalities of Puerto R¡co have with the CRIM arising from final settlements of
property tax advances versus actual collect¡ons through fiscal year 2000-20O1. The amount that the
mun¡c¡palit¡es w¡ll collect from the addit¡onal property taxes resulting from the increase ¡n the
subsidy from the central government to the mun¡c¡palities was ass¡gned through this law to repay
such loan. The ¡ncrease in this subsidy was the result of the Public Law 238, enacted on August 15

1999. As of June 30, 2015 the amount due to CRIM amount¡ng to 5590,160 is presented as other
long-term debt (see Note 10).

The compos¡tion of property taxes receivable and the related deferred revenue is as follows as June

30, 2015.

Gross property taxes receivable
Less allowance for uncollect¡ble accounts

Net property taxes receivable

General Fund Debt Seivicé Fund Total

s6,434,149 s892,137 s7,326,286
5,783,391 810.736 6.594.127

§--650J5E Sllrl0l. S-13¿159

Deferred (unavailable property) tax revenues in GFFS 5--429-062 5-46404 5--475-471
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VOTUME OF BUSIT{ESS TA)(

The mun¡c¡pal license tax is levied annually based on the volume of business of certain bus¡nesses

and industrial organizations that operate in the Munic¡pality. The tax rates are 1.50% for f¡nancing

institut¡ons and .50% for the other business institutions. The taxpayers must file a return not later

than Apr¡l 15 of every year and the tax ¡s payable in two installments, due in July 1 and January 1 of
the following fiscal year. The amount levied could be paid with a five percent (5%) discount if
payment is made on or before the fil¡ng date. The Mun¡c¡pality lev¡ed and collected during the year

ended lune 30, 2OL5, 5290,¿163 corresponding to the follow¡ng fiscal year volume of bus¡ness tax.

Th¡s amount was recorded as deferred revenue, and is presented as a l¡ab¡l¡ty in the accompanying

combined balance sheets and statement of net position.

SATE AI{D USAGE TAX

Pursuant to an amendment to Puerto Rico lnternal Revenue Code, Act u7 of July 4 2006, the
Mun¡c¡pal Leg¡slature approved a city tax contr¡bution (sUT), effective October 3, 2006 to 1.5% over

all transactions of sales of goods and services made on Comerío boundaries. The retails are required
to file monthly sales tax returns by 106 days following the month in which the tax are collected.

Pursuant to the provision at the Act 72-ZOt5 and effective July 1, 2015, the citizenship contribution
was uniformity established ¡n 1.5%, for all the Mun¡c¡pality of Pueño R¡co, of which 1% is collected

by the Mun¡cipal¡ty and the rema¡ning 0.5% is be collected by the Treasury Department of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. A port¡on of the amount collected by the Treasury Department is

subm¡tted to Mun¡cipal F¡nance Corporation (COFIM, by ¡s its spanish acronyn), a redent¡on fund for
f¡nanc¡ng capital proiect to the mun¡cipal¡t¡es.

COFIM is a public corporat¡on and instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, attached to
the Government Development Bank. COFIM is author¡zed to issue and use other financing
mechanisms to pay or refinance, direaly or indirectly, in whole or in part, the debts of the
municipal¡t¡es of the Commonwealth payable or backed by the mun¡cipal sales and use tax. COFIM

receives, from the first revenues of the mun¡c¡pal sales and use tax collected, the greater of: (i) an

amount computed by apply¡ng a 0.3% fixed tax rate to the total revenues collected, or (ii) a fixed

amount that increases annually, known as the Annual F¡xed lncome. These revenues, which are

deposited in COFIM'S Redemption Fund, are used to pay and secure the debt ¡ssued by COFIM. As

an ¡ndependent corporat¡on, COFIM has the same powers, rights and facult¡es as the GDB under ¡ts
Charter.

INTERGOVERNMENÍAT REVENUES

lntergovernmental revenues sources cons¡st of contributions rece¡ved from certain quas¡-public

corporations of the Commonwealth of Puerto R¡co, such as the Puerto Rico Electr¡c Power Author¡ty.
Also, the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty receives some subsidies from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico which
include, among others, a subsidy for general operations and for the financing of capital
¡mprovements. The ¡ntergovernmental revenues are recorded in the General fund, except for those
that are legally restr¡cted for expenditure for specified purposes which are recorded ¡n the Other
Governmental Funds.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

At June 30, 2015, the Municipality was defendant and/or codefendant in several lit¡gat¡ons ar¡sing

out of the normal Municipality's operat¡ons. Most of the cases are covered by insurance.
Management, after consultation with legal counsel, is of the opinion that the ult¡mate liability, in

excess of insurance coverage, if any, resultlng from such pending lit¡gations would not be material in
relation to the financial position of the Municipality.

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agenc¡es. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may const¡tute a

liabil¡ty of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of the expenditures which may be disallowed by
the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Municipal¡ty expects such amounts, if
any, to be ¡mmater¡al.

RESTRICTED DEPOSIT

Restr¡cted cash ¡n the bus¡ness type activ¡ties included restricted deposíts as follows:

8.

Replacement reserve
Secur¡ty depos¡ts
Residual receipts

ss80,229
36,514
13.011

5@9J54

A. Replacement Reserve

The project is required under the Project Rental Ass¡stance Contract (PRAC) and federal
regulations, to set aside amounts to aid ¡n funding extraordinary maintenance and repa¡r and
replacement of capital ¡tems ¡n accordance w¡th appl¡cable regulat¡ons. Funds may be drawn
from the reserve and used only in accordance w¡th HUD guidelines and with approval of, or as

directed by, HUD.

B. Secur¡ty Deposits

The project is required, under federal regulations, to set aside, at the time of the ¡nitial
execut¡on of the lease, the tenant's security depos¡t and its accumulated interest. The project
must refund to the tenant, the full amount of the tenant's secur¡ty deposit, provided the tenant
does not owe any amount under the lease. The Project may use the tenant's security deposit
balance as a reimbursement for any unpaid amounts the tenant owes under the lease.

C. Residual Rece¡pts

The Project ¡s requ¡red, under federal regulations and PRAC, to set as¡de the surplus project
funds in an interest-bearing residual receipts account when the project funds are more than
needed for the operation of the project, to pay operat¡ng expenses, and to make the requ¡red
deposits to the replacement reserve. Withdrawals from this account will be made only w¡th the
approval of HUD and for project purposes, including the reduct¡on of project rental assistance
payments.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activ¡ty for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental activit¡es:

Capital assets not being deprec¡ated:
Land

Construction progress

Total capital assets not be¡ng

depreciated

Cap¡tal assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment
lnfrastructure
lnfrastructure equ¡pment
Build¡nBs ¡mprovements
Furn¡shing
Work of art
Computer
Vehicles

Total capital assets be¡ng deprec¡ated

Less accumulated depreciat¡on for:
Buildings
Equipment
lnfrastructure
lnfrastructure equ¡pment
Bu¡ld¡ngs improvements
Furn ish ing
Work of art
Computer
Vehicles

Total depreciable cap¡tal assets, net

Governmental activities cap¡tal assets net

Balance

June 30,2014 lncreases

Balance

Decreases June 30,2015

5 7,598,792
7,922.666

9.621,458

27,943,578
2,t26,M5
4,O72,723

11,058,638
13,697,9t6

456,760
4,380

355,333
3.872.9L2

63.538.08s

(6,889,443)
(1,720,s30)

(631,817)
(4,48L,9421

{.2,224,046],
(444,3831

(1,813)
(312,068)

(3.345.032)

QO.Os1..O7 4l

43,447 ,Ott

ss3.108.469

35

s 709.381

709.381

132,090
74,672

653,047
447 ,5L2

L,723

14,356
742.289

2.06s.589

(696,681)
(L33,s77]-
(103,066)
(765,676],
(351,071)

(7,7021
(280)

(33,990)
(229.9s1)

12.321,9941

(2s6.305)

s 453-076

s(504,321)

(s04.321)

(14,s28)

(6,1s6)
(130)

(s,434)
(417,155)

(M3.4031

74,528

6,156
130

5,434
4t7 .155
443.403

5 7,698,792
2,727,726

9,825.518

27 ,943,578
2,2M,007
4,L46,795

77,7tL,685
L4,145,474

457,327
4,250

374,255
4.138.046

65.160,371

(7,s86,724],
(1,839,579)

(734,883)
(s,247,6181
(2,575,117],

(445,929l,
(1,963)

(34O,624l,
(3.157.828)

Q1.929.665l,

43,230.706

s s3.os7.224sfs04.321)
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9. CAPTTAL ASSETS (CONTTNUED)

Pr¡marv Government
Busi ness-type act¡v¡ties:

capital assets not be¡ng deprec¡ated:
Land

Cap¡tal assets be¡ng depreciated:
Bu¡ld¡ng and improvements
Office furniture and equipment

Less accumulated deprec¡ation:
Bu¡ld¡ng and ¡mprovements
Office furn¡ture and equipment

Total depreciable cap¡tal, assets net

Bus¡ness act¡vities capital assets, net

General administrat¡on
Public safety
Public works
Education, culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Planning and general services
Hous¡ng

Total depreciat¡on expense

Balance

June 30. 2014

s 134.350

4,274,270
234,827

4.509.097

Q,4s4,2441
|tr:O8.277l.

8.662.s21l.

8/,5.576

s__9!O936

lncrease

s

5tL7,926
Lt.443

729,369

(106,921)

110.¿146)

ÍL77,3671

12,N2

s__raD2

Decrease
Balance

June 30, 2015

s 134.350

4,392,t96
246,270

4.638.466

(3,s61,16s)

1278.723l.
(3,779,888)

858,578

5--992,938

Deprec¡at¡on expense was charged to functions/programs of the Mun¡cipal¡ty as follows:

Governmental BG¡ness-Type
Act¡v¡t¡es Activit¡es

s 588,,446

23,20t
1,183,915

288,289
6,784

131,359
s7L7.367

51L73§7

36
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MUNICIPAIITY OF COMERíO

NoTEs To THE FINANCIAT STATEMENT5 (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

10. IONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term liabil¡ty activ¡ty for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Primary government:
Governmental Activit¡es:

Bonds and notes payable

Advance from CRIM

compensated absences

Business-type act¡v¡ties:
Mortgage payable

Total

Beginn¡ng
Balance

s6,022,000
609,3s4

1,430.250
I,067,6L4

499,435

s8.s61.049

Additions Reductions

S377,ooo
T9,L94

s113.746
713,746 396,194

747 .O80

5543.274§1X1146

3s2.35s s 160,912

s8Árl,5zl 52-069J18

Ending
Balance

ss,64s,000
s90,160

1.544.006
7,779,166

Due with¡n
one vear

s 344,000
20,400

1,544.005
1,908,406
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERíO

NOTES TO THE FINANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONNNUED)

JU E 30,2015

10. roNG-TERM DEBT (CONTTNUED)

Governmental activ¡t¡es:

Bonds and notes payable:

5342,000 Mun¡c¡pal public improvement bonds of 1993 payable in annual princlpal

installments of S24,0OO to 525,OOO through January 1,2016 plus interest at 5.75% 5 26,000

595,000 public ¡mprovement bonds of 1993 payable in annual princ¡pal installments

ranging from S5,0OO to 57,000 through January 1, 2015, plus ¡nterest at 5% 7,000

S5O5,O0O mun¡c¡pal general obligat¡on bonds of 2003 payable in annual principal

installments ranging from S 15,000 to 540,000 through J uly l,2027, plus interest at 5% to
6.5% 355,000

51,010,000 notes of 2005 payable in annual prlncipal installments ranging from 535,000 to

STO,OOO through July L,2029, plus lnterest at 5% 710,000

S3,8u,000 municipal special obligation note ser¡al of 2008 payable in an annual

¡nstallments regarding from S129,000 to 5342,000 through July 1, 2028 plus interest at

5.4% 3,165,000

S252,000 mun¡c¡pal special obligation note serial of 2014 payable in annual principal

¡nstallments ranging from 531,000 and 5214,000 through July 1, 2019, plus interest at 6%. 192,000

5665,000 mun¡c¡pal general of obligation of 2012 payable in annual installments ranging

from 55,000 to 565,000 through July 1,2035 plus interest at 7.50% 645,000

570,000 municipal general obligation note of 2014 payable in annual

principal installments of 510,000 through July 1, 2019 plus ¡nterest at 5%. 50,000

S555,000 mun¡cipal general obligation note of 2015 payable In annual installments rang¡ng

from 550,000 to 555,000 through July L,2O2O plus interest at 7.50% 495.000

5.545.000

Business-type act¡v¡ties:
Mortgage note payable in monthly installments of 515,513 including interest at 9%

including subsidy ¡nterest of 8% through 2018. The note ¡s secured by a residential

building. 352.355

s5-997,35s
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERIO

NorEs To THE FTNANC|AT SÍATEMEIrS (Cofyn UEDI

Juf{E 30, 2015

IONG.TERM DEBT ICONNNUED)

Advances from CRIM

These amounts represent the balance owed to CRIM at June 30, 2015 as described in Note 3 and is
payable in semiannual aggregated installments through July 2032 including interest at 6.1%.

The annual debt serv¡ce requ¡rements to maturity long-term debt as of June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Governmental-Tvoe Activities

Bonds and filotes Pavable
Year Ended Juné 30

20L6
20L7
2018
20L9
2020

202L-2025
2026-2030
203L-2035
2036-2037

Due to CRIM:

Year ended June 30
2076
2077
2018
2019
2020
2027-2025
2026-2030
203t-2032

Principal

5 3¿t4,000

3¿14,000

362,000
385,000
416,000

t,74t,ooo
t,762,OOO

225,ñO
55.000

s5-645.000

lnterest
5 1s4,439

14r324
t29,707
LL6,722
LOz,782
366,726
L67 ,443

56,250
1,950

S1,z!5.s4t

lnterest
5 36,2u

34,922
33,s50
32,112
30,573

126,180
70,376
a.242

s372J09

Aggre8ated
pavments

s 498,439
48s,324
497,107
502,t22
518,182

2,to7 ,726
1,929,443

287,250
65.950

s6É80t43

ABgregated
pavments

S so,eo¿
56,6M
56,504
55,604
55,604

283,O20
283,O20
113.208

s962268

Princioal

S 2o,4oo
27,682
23,0M
24,492
25,031

155,840
272,704
104.966

s590J59
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COMMONWEAITH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF COMERfO

NorEs To THE FINAr{clA¡. STATEMEfIIS (Coim uED)

,u E 30,2015

10. IoNG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Bus¡ness-type act¡v¡t¡es
Mortgage note payable:

11. INTERFUND BAI.AI{CES Af{D ACNVMES

BATANCE DUE TO / FROM OTHER FUNDS:

Balance due to / from other funds at June 30, 2015, cons¡st ofthe followinE:

Due to other
governmental fund Total

Year ended ,une 30
2016
2077
2018

Due from

General fund

Tota I

General fund
Debt service fund 5258

As¡rerated
Princioal lnterest oavments

s160,912 52s,232 s186,1r14

L76,045 10,099 186,L44

15.398 174 15.512

s352.355 535145 s387100

s6s2.372

sszil2

258

56s2.572

5§ill12

TRANSFER TO / FROM OTHER FUNDS:

Transfer to / from other funds transfer in at June 30, 2015 cons¡st of the following:

Other governmental

Tranler out Generalfund Debt service fund Total

s46,158 s338,24s s384,403

Total s258 s46ls8 s338245 s384601

Dur¡ng the year ended June 30, 2015, the component until transfer 549,977 to the general funds.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERíO

NOTE5 TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

JUNE 30, 2015

12. RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

Def¡ned Benef¡t Pens¡on Plan

The Employee's Ret¡rement System of the Government of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico (ERS) is

the adm¡n¡strator of a cost-shar¡ng multiple-employer pension plan administered by the Puerto Rico

Government Employee and Judiciary Ret¡rement System Admin¡stration. The ERS was created by the

Act 447, approved on May 15, 1951, and became effective on January 1, 1952. ERS covers all regular

employees of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and its instrumentality and of municipallties and

components units not covered by their own retirement systems.

participation is mandatory except for members of the Legislature, Government Secretaries, Head of

Agencies and Public lnstrumentality, Assistants of the Governor, the Comptroller of the Puerto R¡co,

Gubernatorial Board and Comm¡ttee appo¡ntees and Experimental Serv¡ce Stat¡on employees. ERS

provides retirement, death and dlsabilíty benef¡ts. D¡sability ret¡rement benefits are available to

members for occupat¡onal and non-occupational disabilities. Ret¡rement benefits depend upon age

at retirement and number of years of credited serv¡ce. Benef¡ts vest after ten years of plan

participation.

As of June 30, 2014, the ERS has an unfunded actuarial accrued l¡ab¡l¡ty (UAAL) of approximately

s22,981 million, represent¡ng a 3.1% funding ratio. ln the opinion of management and based on

information prepared by consult¡ng actuaries, ¡t ¡s estimated that starting in fiscal year 2015, the

ERS's assets will be less than its obl¡gations (including bonds payable but excluding its UML)

resulting in a def¡c¡t net position. ln add¡tion, annual cash flow estimates for the foreseeable future

are presently estimated to continue to reduce the net posit¡on unless other measures are taken.

Future employer contributions have been pledged for the payment of debt service, consequently

further depletion of ERS's assets could result in the ¡nability to pay benefits.

The estimate of when the ERS'S net position will become a deficit and when its assets would be

exhausted is based on signif¡cant assumpt¡ons, ¡nclud¡ng the rate of return on investments, the

amount and t¡m¡ng of collections from the Commonwealth for the member, employer contribut¡ons

and the employer additional contribution (Act No. 32), which as discussed below, was est¡mated in

5120.0 mill¡on annually, as well as the est¡mated part¡cipant benefits and the ERS'S administrative

expenses to be paid each year.

To improve the llquidity and solvency of the ERS, the Commonwealth enacted Act No. 32 of June 25,

2014, which provides for ¡ncremental annual contribut¡ons from the Commonwealth General Fund

beginning in fiscal year 2015 and up to the fiscal year 2033. This addit¡onal contribution will be

determ¡ned annually based on actuar¡al studies to be performed by the ERS'S actuaries. And

appropriation for such additional contribution of approximately 5120 million was included in the

Commonwealth's budget for the fiscal year 2015. However, as a result of budgetary constraints at

the present time management believes that approx¡mately S90 million of th¡s amount will not be

collected as expected during fiscal year 2015. Further, this additional contr¡but¡on was reduced to

S28.2 m¡llion for the Commonwealth's proposed budget for the fiscal year 2015.

47



12.

COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COMERíO

NorEs To THE FINANCIAI STATEMENÉ (COrnlUeo)

JUNE 30, 2015

RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

lf the Commonwealth's financ¡al condit¡on does not improve as a result of fiscal and budgetary

measures it is taking, its ab¡l¡ty to repay its obligations, including its regular employer contribut¡ons

to the ERS and its additional contribut¡on as provided by Act No. 32, for the upcoming years, may

cont¡nue to be adversely affected, and could also affect the payment of benefits and the repayment

of the ERS'S bond payable.

To address these issues, the ERS and the Commonwealth, with the assistance of the ERS external

consulting actuaries, concluded that, ¡n add¡t¡on to other measures, annual ¡ncreases ¡n the

employers' contr¡bution rate would be requlred to fully fund pensions, without having to liquidate

the ERS ¡nvestment portfol¡o. Accordingly, on July 5, 2011, the Commonwealth enacted Act No. 115,

increas¡ng the employers' contr¡butions rate from 9.275% lo L0.275% of employee compensat¡on

for fiscal year 2oll-2012, an additional 1% annually for each of the next four years, and 7.25%

annually for each of the five years thereafter, reaching an aggregate contr¡bution ra¡e of 20.525yo

effective Iuly 1, 2020.

Furthermore, on April 4, 2014, the Governor of Puerto Rico signed into law Act No. 3 of 2014, which

represents a comprehensive reform of the ERs. Act No. 3 became effect¡ve on July 1 2014 and

amended the provisions of the different benefit structures under the ERS, ¡nclud¡n8, but not l¡m¡ted

to, the following:

1. For active participants of the contr¡butory defined benefit programs under Act No. 447 of

1951 and Act No. 1 of 1990, all retirement benefits accrued through June 30, 2014 were

frozen, and thereafter, all future benefits will accrue under the def¡ned contribution formula

used for System 2OOO part¡cipants, and will be paid at retirement through a l¡fetime annu¡ty.

2. lncreased the minimum pension for current retirees from 5400 to 5500 per month.

3. The ret¡rement age for Act No. 447 participants w¡ll be gradually increased from age 58 to

age 61.

4. The ret¡rement age for act¡ve System 2OOO participants will be gradually increased from age

60 to age 65.

5. Transition¡ng active participants under Act No. 1 and Act No. 447 to a def¡ned contribut¡on

plan similar to System 2000.

6. Elim¡nated the "merit annuity'' available to participants who joined the ERS pr¡or to April 1,

1990.

7. The retirement age for new employees was increased to age 57, except for new state and

municipal police officers, firefighters, and custody off¡cers, which will be age 58.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATIW OF COMERíO

NoTES TO THE FrfrrANCrAr STATEMENTS (CONnNUEO)

JUNE 30, 2015

12. RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

Def¡ned Benef¡t Pension Plan (Continued!

8. The employee contr¡bution rate was increased from 8.275% to lO%.

9. For System 2000 part¡cipants, the ret¡rement benef¡ts will no longer be paid as a lump sum

d¡str¡bution, instead, they will be paid through a lifet¡me annuity.

10. Eliminated or reduced various retirement benefits previously granted by special laws,

including Christmas and summer bonuses. The Chr¡stmas bonus payable to current

retirees was reduced from 5600 to S20O and was elim¡nated for future retirees. The

summer bonus was elim¡nated. Result¡ng employer contr¡but¡on savings will be contributed

to the ERS.

11. D¡sabil¡ty benefits were elim¡nated and substituted for a mandatory disability ¡nsurance

policy.

12. Surv¡vor benefits were modified.

The employer contribut¡ons to the above mentioned plans during the last three years ended

June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

2015
20L4
20L3

Emplover

531s,160
246,Ot6
29L,77 3

Effective for fiscal year ended June 30,2015, the GASB 58 requ¡res that the Municipalitles

governmental-wlde financial statements present the proport¡onal net pension l¡ability ofthe ERS. ln

addition, the GASB 68 required among other the followlng disclosures:

A. Employer's proport¡onate share amount of collective net pension liability.

B. Employe/s proport¡onate percentage of collective net pens¡on liability (including the basis

on which ¡t was determ¡ned) and change on its proport¡on since prior measurement debts.

C. S¡gnificant assumption used to measure total pension liability, includlng inflation, salary

changes, discounts rate and mortal¡ty.

D. Measurement date of collect¡ve net pens¡on liabllity and date of actuarial valuation on

wh¡ch the total liabil¡ty ¡s base.

E. lnformat¡on about plan fiduciary net pos¡t¡on

43



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERíO

NOIES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMEf{TS (CONTINUED)

JU E 30,2015

12. RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

Defined Benef¡t Pension Plan (Continued)

Other information about the net pens¡on liabilities should be disclosed as required supplemental
information. ERS has not issued its financial statements since June 30, 2013. Accord¡ngly, the
required information is not available accounting the information is not d¡sclosure ¡n the
Municipality's financial statements.

The P.R. Retirement Plan Administration provides addit¡onal information of the ERS. They issue a

public available financial report that ¡ncludes financ¡al statements and required supplementary

information for ERS, as a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The last financial

statement was issued for fiscal year ended June 30,2013. That report may be obtained by wr¡t¡ng to

the Adminlstration at PO Box 42003, M¡n¡llas Stat¡on, San Juan, P.R. 00940.

13. CONTINGENCIES

As of June 30, 2015, the Municipal¡ty was defendant and/or codefendant in several litigations arising

out of the normal Municipality's operations. Most of the cases are covered by insurance.

Management, after consultatlon with legal counsel, is of the op¡n¡on that the ultimate liab¡l¡ty, ¡n

excess of insurance coverage¡ if any, result¡ng from such pending litigat¡ons would not be material in

relation to the financial pos¡tion of the Munic¡pality.

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and ad.¡ustment by

grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a

liab¡l¡ty of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of the expenditures wh¡ch may be disallowed by

the grantor cannot be determined at th¡s time, although the Municipality expects such amounts, ¡f

any, to be immaterial.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUf{ICIPATITY OF COMERIO

SCHEDUIE OF BUDGETARY CoMPANH,N

FoR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

GEf{ERAt FUND

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes
Municipal tax
Sales tax
Construction exc¡se taxes

Grants and entitlements
Rental income
Licenses and perm¡ts

lnterest
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General admin¡stration
Public safety
Educat¡on, culture and recreational
Public works and sanitation
Health and welfare
Communication press and media
Planning and general service

Total expend¡tures

Excess of revenue over expenditure

27,113 27.7t3 74,709

LO,477 .97t 11.007.499 11.331.341

ORIGINAT

BUDGET

s 807,7s0
495,880
580,500
80,000

8,089,357
359,77t

4,000
32,000

5,505,810
7to,593
377 ,L68

2,256,932
7s6,288
334,510
536.570

LO.477.971

L-

FINAT

BUD6ET

ACÍUAL AT
BUDGETARY

BASIS

s 8s7,231
519,028
719,Otz
7L5,77 6

8,598,821
4t4,loo

7,675
24,969

VARIANCE

wlTH FINAT

BUDGET

FAVORABLE
(Uf{FAVORABTEI

S 807,750
496,880
s80,500

80,000
8,618,885

359,777
4,000

32,000

s 4s,481
22,748

138,532
35,776
(20,064)

54,329
3,675
(7,031)

46.996

323,842

249,992
4,442

L0,763
83,575
23,789
t0,624
9.592

392.778

s716.62)

6,033,338
67L,SS4
371,059

2,32t,579
743,357
365,103
500.509

LL,OO7 .499

5

5,783,345
657,L72
350,295

2,238,OO3

719,568
355,479
490,9t7

10,674.72L

u6.620
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COMERíO

NorEs To SCHEDULE OF BUDGETaRY CoMPARISoN

JUNE 30, 2015

1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The Municipality follows these procedures in establ¡shing the budgetary data reflected ¡n the

f¡nancial statements:

Formal budgetary ¡ntegration is employed as a management control device during the year for

the General Fund. Formal budgetary integration is not employed for special revenue funds

because effective budBetary control is alternat¡vely achieved through legal and contractual grant

requ¡rements provisions.

on or before May 15, the Mayor submits to the Municipal LeBislative Body a proposed operating

budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes

proposed expenditures and the means for flnancing them.

Prior to June 13, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

The Municipal Legislat¡ve Body approves, by ordinance budget appropriations by functional

bas¡s. The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments with¡n any

fund; however, any rev¡sions that alter the total appropr¡at¡ons of any fund must be approved

by the Municipal Legislat¡ve Body.

Unused appropr¡ations for the annual budgeted funds lapse at the end of the year.

The budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The actual results of operations,

presented ¡n the statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual General Fund, is

in conformity with the budgetary accounting of the Municipality for a better comparison with

the budget information.

The presentation of the budgetary data excludes other appropriations such as cap¡tal projects,

debt service and spec¡al revenue funds because projects are funded on a mult¡-year nature,

generally requir¡ng several years to complete or effective budgetary control is alternatively

ach¡eved through general obligation bond indentures and legal and contractual grant agreement

provisions.

1)

2l

3)

4l

s)
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF COMERÍO

NorEs To SGHEDUIf OF BUDGEÍARY COMPARISOÍ{ (COÍ{INUED)

Juf{E 30, 2015

2. RECONCITIATION OF GAAP TO BUDGETARY BASIS

Adjustments necessary to reconcile the revenues and expenditures of the general fund at the end of
the year, from the generally accepted accounting pr¡nciples to budgetary basis, are as follows:

Revenues ExDenses

Revenue and expenses for generally accepted

accounting pr¡nciples (GAAP) basis 511,395,592 510,679,951

Transfer out ¡ncluded as expenditures in

budgetary basis 50,334 384,403

Other adjust ent to adjust revenues and

expenses from budgetary basic to modified

accrual basis f114.585) l¡t49,633)

Revenue and expenses per budgetary basis 5l].,jl3L:¡41 SXL614721
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COMERíO

SCHEDUIE Ot ExpE DtruREs OF FEDERAL AwaRos

YEAR E DED JUNE 30, 2015

CFDA

NUMBER EXPENDITURES

US Department of Hous¡ns and Urban
Develooment

Passed through:
Municipal Service Administration:

Commun¡ty Development Block Grant L4.228 S 393,184

Puerto Rico Public Hous¡nB Adm¡n¡strat¡on:
Public and lndian Housing 14.850 741,005

D¡rect Program:
Section 8- Housing Choice Vouchers 14.877 774.258

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 7,U8,457

us Department of Just¡ce
Passed through:

PR Department of Justice:
Cr¡me Victim Assistance 16.575 54,829

Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants 16.710 7 .527

Total Department oflustice 62,350

US Deoartment of Arr¡culture
Passed through:

PR Department of Educat¡on:

Child and Adult Food Program 10'558 20,333

US Department of Health and Human Services

Passed through:
PR Department of Fam¡ly:

Ch¡ld Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 273,227

us Department of Eners
Passed through:

Puerto Rico Energy Affairs Adm¡nistrat¡on:
Energy Efficiency Conservat¡on Block Grant 81.125 45,497

Us Deoartment of Homeland Secur¡w
Passed through:

PR Emergency Management and D¡saster Adm¡n¡strat¡on
Agency (GAR):

D¡saster Ass¡stance Grant 97.036 43,836
C¡t¡zen Corps 97.053 N2

ffi
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GOMMONWEAf,IH OF PUERTO R¡CO

MUÍ{IOPAI¡TV OF COTÚERb

OÍES TO SC¡IEOI,II OF EOCTEÍI'REs (» FEOCRAL AWAND§

JU E:m,2015

I

L 1. BAsTsoFPRESEüTATr'rr:

I fhe accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of
! Munic¡pality of Comerío and is presented on the modify basis of accounting. The informat¡on in this

. Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Aud¡t of States,

I mcal Governments and Non profit organizations.
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CARLOS R. DIAZ, CPA, PSC
PO BOX «)a.75Al,!5 TORRES 5r AGLTAs BllEtrAs PUERTO RICO&703 1ZL la1 732-AO7O aAI 747 732 0685 EMAIL: .diár@cá.1órrdÉ¿caá .m

INDEPENDEIÚT AUD]TOR'S REPORT ON II{TERNAT CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPTIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAT STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE wlTH GOVERN¡I'ENT AUUNNG STANDARDS

To Honorable Mayor and
Mun¡cipality teg¡slative Eody

Mun¡c¡pality of Comerío
Comerío, Puerto Rico

We have audited, ¡n accordance with the audit¡ng standards generally accepted in the Un¡ted States of
Amer¡ca and the standards appl¡cable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stondords
issued by the Comptroller General of the Un¡ted States, the financ¡al statements of the governmental
activ¡t¡es, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund ¡nformation of Municipality of Comerío,
Puerto R¡co, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise Munic¡pal¡ty of Comerío, Puerto R¡co's basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 23, 2015. Our report includes a
reference to other aud¡tors who audited the financial statements of Río Plata Project, as described in
our report on Municipal§ of Comerío, Puerto Rico's financial statements. Th¡s report does not ¡nclude
the results of the other aud¡to/s test¡ng of internal control over financ¡al report¡nB or compliance and
other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

lnternal Control over F¡nancial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Municipality of
Comerlo, Puerto R¡co's ¡nternal control over financial report¡ng (¡nternal control) to determine the aud¡t
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our op¡n¡ons on the
financ¡al statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opin¡on on the effectiveness of
Munic¡pality of Comerío, Puerto R¡co-s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of Municipal¡ty of Comerlo, Puerto Rico's ¡nternal control.

A deiiciency in internal control exists when the design or operat¡on of a control does not allow
management or employees, ¡n the normal course of performing the¡r ass¡gned funct¡ons, to prevent, or
detect and correct, m¡sstatements on a t¡mely bas¡s. A moteriol weokness is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, ¡n internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibil¡ty that a mater¡al
m¡sstatement of the enti§/s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A sign¡ficont deÍiciency is a defic¡ency, or a comb¡nation of def¡c¡encies, in ¡nternal control
that ¡s less severe than a mater¡al weakness, yet important enough to merit attent¡on by those charged
w¡th governance.

MEMBER:
American Institute of Certified Public A.countants
Puerto Rico Society of Cert¡fied Publ¡a Accountants

l^pA Governrñeñtál\'r ' \ Audit ouality Center



Our considerat¡on of ¡nternal control was for the lim¡ted purpose described ¡n the f¡rst paragraph of th¡s

sect¡on and was not des¡gned to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material

weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. G¡ven these limitat¡ons, dur¡ng our aud¡t we did not ¡dent¡fy any

defic¡enc¡es in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, mater¡al

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Municipali§ of Come¡ío, Pu€rto Rico's

financ¡al statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance w¡th

certain provis¡ons of laws, regulat¡ons, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which

could have a d¡rect and material effect on the determ¡nat¡on of financial statement amounts. However,

providing an op¡n¡on on compliance w¡th those prov¡sions was not an objective of our audit, and

accordingly, we do not express such an op¡n¡on. The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are requ¡red to be reported under Government Aud¡ting Stondords

and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cost as item 2015-1.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of ¡nternal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an op¡n¡on on the effectiveness of the

ent¡ty's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an aud¡t performed in

accordance wilh Government Aud¡ting Stondords in considering the entity's ¡nternal control and

compl¡ance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Cados R. Díaz, CPA, PSC
L¡cense No. 275

Expire December 1, 2018
December 23, 2015

Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

The stamp No. E199123 of the Puerto R¡co

Soc¡ety of Cert¡fied Publ¡c Accountants was

affixed to the or¡g¡nal of th¡s report.
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CARLOS R. DIAZ, CPA, PSC
PO 8Ox 4Oa 7 SAIA TORRTS Sl, AGUAS BUtñAS,PUIRTO RICO B7O3 TEL 787 732-8020 lAr:737.712{645

IÍ{DEPEI{DET{T AUDITOf,I'S REFORT OT{ @MPI¡A'{CE FOA EAOI M'UOR PROGf,AM

A D OX ]I{TERT{AL CONTROI. OVER COMruAN€E REQU]RED BY OMB CIRCULAR A.133

To Honoreble Mayor and
Munkipali§ Legblative Body

Municipaltty of Comerío
comerb, Puerto Rko

Report on compliance for Each Maior Heral Program

We have audited Munhipality of Come¡ío, Puérto Rico's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circulor A-73j Compl¡once Supplement that could have a direct and

material effect on each of Municipality of Comerío, Puerto Rko's major federal programs for the year

ended lune 30, 2015. Munic¡pal¡t'res of Comcrío, Puerto Rkcls ma¡or federal programs ate identified in

the summary of audito/s results section ofthe accompanying schedule of findings and questioñed costs.

Municipal¡ty of Comerío, Puerto Rico's basic financ¡a¡ statements include the op€rations of the Río Plata

Project, which expensed 576f,O42 in fuderal awards which is not included in the schedule during the
year ended June 30, 2015. Our aud¡t, described below, did not include th€ operations of Río Plata

Project because Munic¡pality of Comerío, Puerto Rico engaged other auditors to perform and audit in

accordance w¡th OMB Circular A-133.

Ma na g e m e n( s R e sgo n si ül ity

Management is responsible for compliance with the requiremerts of laws, regulations, coñtracts, and

grants applicable to ¡ts federal pro8rams.

A túito r's Res pon s i bi lity

Our responsibility is to express an op¡n¡on on compliance for each of MuniciPatity of Comerío, I'uerto
Ríco's major federal programs based on our audit of th€ types of compliance requ¡rements referred to
above. we conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing sr¿ndards generally acc€pted

¡n the Un¡ted States of America; th€ standards applicabh to financial audits contained in Government

Auditing Stondards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,

Aud¡ts oÍ Stotes, Locol Governmentt ond Non-Profit Argonr?otions. Those standards and OMB Circular A-

133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assufirnc€ aboüt whether
noncompliance w¡th the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence about Munic¡pality of Comerío, Pueño R¡co's cornpliance with those requ¡rements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary ¡n the c¡rcumstances.

MEMEER:
American lnlitute of Ceñified PuH¡c Accountants
Puerto Rko society of Certiñed Publ¡c Accountant

l^p GovernñeñtálvL \ Audit ouálity Cénter



We believe that our aud¡t provides a reasonable basis for our op¡n¡on on compliance for each major

federal program. However, our audlt does not provide a legal determ¡nat¡on of Munic¡pality of
Comerío, Puerto Rico's compliance.

Opinion on Each Majot Federol Progrom

ln our opinion, Mun¡c¡pality of Comerío, Puerto Rico complied, ¡n all mater¡al respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a d¡rect and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Report on lnternal Control over Compliance

Management of Munic¡pality of Comerío, Puerto Rico is responsible for establ¡shing and ma¡ntaining

effective internal control over compl¡ance with the types of compliance requ¡rements referred to above.

ln planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Municipali§ of Comerío, Puerto

Rico's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and

material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are

appropr¡ate ¡n the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major

federal program and to test and report on ¡nternal control over compliance ¡n accordance with OMB

Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of express¡ng an op¡nion on the effectiveness of internal control

over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an op¡nion on the effect¡veness of Mun¡cipal¡ty of
Comerío, Puerto R¡co's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internol control over complionce ex¡sts when the design or operat¡on of a control over

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perform¡ng the¡r

assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance

requirement of a federal program on a timely bas¡s. A moterio I weakness in internol control over

complionce is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that

there is a reasonable poss¡bility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of

a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a t¡mely hasis. A significont

deficiency ¡n ¡nternol control over complionce is a deficiency, or a comb¡nat¡on of defic¡encies, ¡n internal

control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe

than a material weakness in internal control over compllance, yet ¡mportant enough to merit attent¡on

by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the l¡mited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this sect¡on and was not designed to identify all defic¡encies ¡n internal control over

compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We d¡d not identify any

deficiencies in ¡nternal control over compliance that we consider to be mater¡al weaknesses. However,

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified'
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Cados R-Dí^z,CPA5 PSC
L¡cense No. 275

Exp¡re December 1, 2018

The purpose of this r€port on ¡ntemal control orer compl¡anoe ¡s solely to describe the scope of our
test¡ng of ¡ntemal control over ompliance and the resuhs of that test¡rg based on the requ¡rements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, th¡s report is not suitable fur any other purpose.

December 23, 2015

Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

The stamp No. E19912¡ ofthe Puerto Rico

Society of Certified Publ¡c Accountants was

affixed to the original ofthis report.
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MUNICIPATITY OF COMERíO

ScHEDUTE OF FTNDTNGS AND QuEsflor{ED cosrs
FoRTHE Y€AR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUW OF COMERfO

SCI{EDUTE OF FII{DIfiIGS AI{D QUESNONED COSÍS

FOR THE YEAN EÍ{DED JU E30,2015

SECTION I . SUMMARY OF AUDITORS RESUTTS

Financ¡al Statements

Tvp€ of auditor's reoort issued unoualified

lnternal control over financ¡al reporting:

. Mater¡al weakness (es) identified? 
-yes 

x no

. Sign¡ficant deficiency (ies) ident¡fied
that are not considered to be material weaknesses? 

-yes 
-Lno

Noncompl¡ance material to financial statement noted? -Lyes 
-no

Federal Awards

lnternal control over major programs:

o Material weakness (es) identified?
. Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are

not considered to be mater¡al weakness(es)

Type of audito/s report issued on compliance for
major programs

Any aud¡t f¡ndings d¡sclosed that are requ¡red to be

reported in accordance with sect¡on 510(a) of
C¡rcular A-133

_yes Xno

Xno

Xno

-yes
Unoualified

_yes

ldentification of major programs:

CFA Numberfsl Name of Federal Pro¡ram Cluster

14.871 Section 8 - Housing Choice Vouchers

Dollar threshold used to dist¡nguish between type A
and type B programs: S300,m0

Audit qualified as low-risk audited? --X-yes 
-no
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUW OF COMERÍO

scHEDUrf oF FTNDTNGS Af{D QU€SrIONED CO§ÍS (CO nNUED}

FoRTHEYEAN E OEDJUNE 30,2015

SECTION II . FINANCIAT STATEMEÍTITS FINDINGS

Finding No. 2015{11

Account¡ng system

Condit¡on

The MunicipaliVs financial statements do not ¡ncluded such adjustments and d¡sclosures required by

GASB - 58.

Criteria

GASB 68 requires that the pension expenses, as well as deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to pension be recognized for employe/s proport¡onate share of collect¡ve

pension expense and collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pens¡ons. The employer's proportionate share should be determined us¡ng the employer's
proport¡on of the collective net pens¡on l¡ability.

Effect

The Munic¡palitfs financial statements are not presented in accordance w¡th generally accepted ¡n the
United States of Amer¡ca.

Recommendation

The Municipali§ should adjust its financial statements to ¡ncluded such adjustments, if an¡ required by

account¡ng principle generally accepted in the United States of Amer¡ca.
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COMMOÍ{U'EALIH OF PUERTO RIGO

MU¡{ICIPAIITY (» COMERÍO

ScrrEDr,lE Or Fnr» Gs AlD QuEsnonED o6rs (Gor.niluED)

FoRT¡rc YEAR E ¡»D Ju¡{E :¡0, 2015

SECNOil NI. - FET'ERAL AWART'S FIÍTI)INGS AI{D QUEiNOilED COSÍS

NONE
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